Clara Hearne

The Chatterbox

Volume IV

Number 3



JANUARY, 1910

"I Chatter Chatter as I Go"

Digitized by the Internet Archive in 2012 with funding from University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill

TABLE OF CONTENTS

The Coming of 1910	79
Which?	81
A Character Sketch of Juliet	83
A Letter from Home	85
Edmund Spenser	86
In the Rose Garden	88
The New Year	89
Parody	90
Editorial	91
	93
Exchanges	94
Among Us	95
	97
Alumnæ Department	99
Have You Heard the Latest?	01
College Directory	05

Business Manager's Notice.

All charges for advertisements are payable after first insertion. Send all subscriptions to the Business Manager.

MATTIE MOORE.

SEE OUR ADVERTISEMENTS!

The Chatterbox.

Vol. IV.

JANUARY, 1910.

No. 3.

Literary Department.

The Coming of 1910.

A. A., Ex. '10.

Soft and gray the clouds at bay o'er woodland, hill and dale, Naught in quest, they gently rest, where clouds are wont to sail.

Birds of prey now wing their way on toward a warmer clime, Cold and still each brook and rill; hushed its simple rhyme.

The forest's bare, and none would dare to say it sighed for leaves:

 Λ fairer gown than green or brown clings tightly to the trees.

All around, upon the ground the crystal carpet laid, So sparkling bright, all dazzling white, the fairies must have made.

There is no mist, the air is crisp. O cold and solemn mood! But beauty keeps the earth asleep and gently she is woo'd.

Then the air all humid grows, cold the night and chill, Naught of life is stirring now, hush'd the busy mill. Down from the sky, so weird and high, a million snow flakes hail;

They drift and float each tiny boat, amid the wind's sad wail.

And hustle round upon the ground as soft as fluffy down,
Then nestle and sigh and snugly lie upon each graceful
mound.

Then again all seems to change, the high wind blows a gale, Sends the snow to westernward; the moon comes thin and pale.

The shadows lengthen, the night grows. Alloyed are pain and joy within.

It's very late, the old year's gone, and this is nineteen ten!

Which?

FRANCES ABERNETHY, '10.

In a little college town in the north central part of North Carolina, a Senior was sitting in his room thinking of the past and dreaming of the future. His heart beat with joy as he thought that in less time than two weeks he would be at his home. He regretted leaving behind the happy days that he had spent on the old campus beneath the shade of the sheltering oaks, then his thoughts wandered to Dorothy. Could he leave her so soon after their engagement? "No, decidedly, no," his heart answered and, satisfied with the answer, he turned to look over his mail.

As he glanced on the table and saw a blue envelope, a look of amazement came over his face. He well knew what a blue envelope signified. Hastily breaking the seal, he glanced over the contents and as he did so, an expression of relief came over his countenance, for instead of bringing ill news, the envelope brought the information that the English examination had been postponed.

"By George," he ejaculated, "that's good news; now I can go to see Dorothy this afternoon with a clear conscience."

And off he skipped, whistling a love song as he thought of Dorothy, and his English examination. For this was the last examination he would have to stand and, if he passed on this one, he could boast of being a graduate of the University of North Carolina.

He whistled merrily as he walked along, and at last he reached Dorothy's home, which was situated in a grove of stately oaks behind which rose the crater of an old volcano in the distance.

Dorothy was sitting in a hammock reading when Jack came up and she made room for him beside her. He told her the news concerning his work and, while they were making plans for the future, they quarreled—as lovers often do—over some silly nothing.

Both were firm, and at last Jack slowly walked back to the college to dream, in despondency, of the future.

The days passed drearily by, until the day set for his departure. He had packed his trunk and was preparing to visit, for the last time, the scenes of his college days when there came a tap at his door and a little messenger boy handed him this note:

"The English examination will be given in No. 24 of the East Building this afternoon at two o'clock.

JOHN SMITH."

"Well," he thought, "I shall have time enough to stand the examination and then eatch the four o'clock train." Then having nothing to do, he went to the post-office, where he found a letter in his box. Having opened it he read:

"Dear Jack:—A mistake has been made and I must explain. Please call this afternoon at two.

If you are not here by two, I shall know that you do not care to hear my explanation.

Yours,

DOROTHY."

He looked at his watch, the minute hand pointed to five minutes to two. Should he go to his examination and lose Dorothy, or go to Dorothy and lose the diploma for which he had toiled four long years?

And the question I leave with you, reader, is, did he go to Dorothy or the examination? Which?

A Character Sketch of Juliet.

GERTIE BATEMAN, '10.

"Romeo and Juliet is a picture of love and its pitiable fate, in a world whose atmosphere is too rough for Juliet, this tenderest blossom of human life." Notwithstanding the fact that this blossom is frail and has the weakness that characterizes her sex, yet she is pure in soul and noble in spirit.

Juliet's parents are worldly, pleasure-loving people, and thus we find that from a mere infant she was not given the motherly care which is so essential to the perfect development of the child mind. Although her old nurse was devoted to her and did all in her power for her, yet the tender guidance and training of a mother, which is far different from that of a nurse, was lacking, and the child-mind was made less strong in the lack of this close relationship which ought to exist between parent and child.

One of Juliet's very marked characteristics is her girlish innocence and purity. Living, as it were, in a little world of her own, her innocence and purity of soul is not marred by the cares and strifes of the outside world. As yet she has found no one to share with her the delights and sorrows of the little world in which she lives, and to stir the passion which lies buried in the depths of her soul; but when Romeo comes into her Garden of Eden to share with her its delights and sorrows, her heart is stirred, the heartstrings vibrate, and the passionate love which has so long been dormant is aroused. The heart of each

"Responds as if with unseen wings An angel touched its quivering strings And whispers in its song, 'Where hast thou stayed so long?'

In this great love which comes into her life, she does not try to conceal from herself the impulses of her nature, for we find her in the "Hymn to the Night," thinking aloud, and her love thus expressed is fraught with purity, tenderness, self-forgetting ardor and constancy. Juliet is all and entire in every act of her soul; the wholesome and crystalline purity of her soul is flamed by no double self. This young love has, for her, all that is beautiful in the rose with whatever is sweet in the freshness of spring; but it ends with a deep-drawn sigh like the breeze of an Italian evening.

She who was but a child a few days ago passes with one bound, as it were, into a self-sustained, heroic woman. It is not until the marriage with Paris is forced upon her, that all her feelings as a woman, a lover, and a wife are thoroughly aroused. Because her heart is all truth, it stands a fixed necessity either "to live an unstained wife to her sweet love," or else to die. To arrest that which she deems an infinite evil, she goes to father, to mother, and nurse in succession; but it is not until she is cast entirely on her own strength that she finds herself sufficient for herself. But in spite of the great resolution she makes in taking poison, we feel that she is still the same tender, gentle being whose breath was lately so rich and sweet with words of love. It is thus through her great heroism, in this great trouble, that her womanhood is fully developed and she is thenceforth as strong as a Seraph.

We find Juliet's love not like the inconstant moon that nightly changes, but a love that is strong and pure, noble and elevating, a love that time nor eternity is able to change; an everlasting love; it is love that

> "Alters not with its brief hours and weeks, But bears it out even to the edge of doom,"

A Letter From Home.

NETTIE CULBRETH, '10.

When one is sad and lonely,
And everything seems to go wrong,
And the birds that used to sing sweetly
Have lifted their wings and have flown,
What is there that changes one's feelings,
And makes all of life a glad song,
As a dear, sweet letter from mother,
A good long letter from home?

There are letters that make one jolly,
And letters that sound so sweet!
There are letters from aunts and cousins,
And others that are hard to beat;
But when all the world seems dreary
And all our pleasures have flown,
There is nothing that suits us exactly
Like a long, loving letter from home.

Edmund Spenser.

CORA WOMBLE, '11.

Edmund Spenser, the "Poet's Poet," lived at the time when the effects of the Italian Renaissance were being felt most in England. Being naturally of a poetic nature, one can see that he would have enjoyed living in the midst of the splendor and learning of Elizabethan England. This was not to be his lot, however, for not long after leaving school he went to Ireland, and that turbulent island was destined to be his home for the greater part of his remaining years. In the midst of uprisings and strife, this lover of beauty and learning did not allow himself to become despondent and give up his poetic taste, but here amidst the strife of rude people he wrote his best poem. The Faerie Queene. Spenser was the first of the Elizabethan poets, and so deep was his love for the beautiful and poetic that even in a lawless island that love was not destroyed.

Spenser is full of idealism or imagination. Instead of entering into the crowd himself and dealing with real objects, as Chaucer does, he idealizes his knights and their struggles and places them in fairy-land. In reading Spenser we can not enter heartily into fellowship with him, but always admire him from a far off, and reverence him as our superior, not placing ourselves on equal footing with him.

We are not often allowed to get very near the poet's real self. In some instances, however, we see his real nature. Some lines that he wrote after his failure to gain royal favor in England, when the first three books of *The Faerie Queene* were published, show his extreme sensitiveness.

Although living at the time when the drama was very popular, Spenser was not a dramatist. He did not possess the qualities of a dramatist, but was a true imaginative poet. His Shepherd's Calendar is a specimen of his pastoral poetry and is one of the best pastorals in the language. His disappointment in his love affair with Rosalind is brought out to some extent in this poem. His Prothalamion has been called the finest marriage hymn ever written. In all his works we see an ardent love of beauty. So great is this love of beauty in Spenser that the more poetic a person is the better he can understand and appreciate his works. For this reason he has been called the "poet's poet."

Few poets possess Spenser's pictorial power and melody of verse. So vividly does he picture his characters and objects that we can not fail to see them as he intended them to be seen. His love of melody and music are so strong that to produce perfect harmony he used a stanza never known before, but since his time it has been used frequently and is called the *Spenserian* stanza.

Although a man of unusual ability, Spenser was destined to live a sad life and at last to die in want. At the very time when he longed to be in England, where there was so much pomp and splendor, he was banished, as he says, to that turbulent island and forgotten. There his life was constantly in danger, and at last his home was burned by the natives. He barely escaped with his family and fled to London, where he died broken in fortune and spirit. He was honored, however, by burial in Westminster Abbey. Though living, he seemed to think himself forgotten, he was not, and is not to-day. He still lives in his works and is admired by all true lovers of the literature of imaginative, poetic beauty.

In The Rose Garden.

x.

It was twilight in the rose garden. The silvery moon-beams cast faint gleams of light among the dark shadows. The air was laden with the delicious fragrance of a thousand roses. Silence reigned supreme—there was the music of stillness in the garden.

Near the sparkling fountain stood a man and a woman. There was a question in his eager eyes. The woman picked a rose from a bush near by, a rose with silvery white outer petals and a warm, pink heart. For an instant she pressed it to her lips, then gently laid it in the man's hand.

"For always," she said in a low, sweet voice.

"My darling!" He swayed her to him and poured out his passionate devotion. Then there was silence in the garden again—the man's face was radiant—he had won, at last!

A haunting, sweet memory of another night, long ago, in the same rose garden, filled the woman's soul, but she held herself sternly to the present.

Caressing the rose, the man said:

"Love, I shall always keep this dear rose, your answer. Only I shall break off the thorn."

"Oh," she minimured, "do you always break the thorns from your roses?"

"Yes, Dear Heart, don't you?"

Her rich voice, with a world of sympathetic tenderness, thrilled him.

"No; I am a woman. I hold my rose tight; while the blood trickles, I smile and say, 'My rose has no thorns.'"

"It is better to break them off—a man's way"—he said,

lightly, and with that delightful sense of complete possession, ardently kissed her hands, as he bade her Good night.

In the rose garden Love wept; while Memory's thorns sank deep into the heart of the Beloved.

The New Year.

X. Y. Z.

A bright new year is here again,
Just starting off anew;
And I must work and play and sing
Yve got so much to do.

Last year I said I'll do my best
I'll climb just one more round,
But somehow it was like the rest
For something pulled me down.

This year I'll start it all anew Before the year has passed, Because I've got so much to do And did so little last.

Parody.

PAULINE VICK.

Tell me not in mournful numbers
College life is all a dream
When the bell disturbs our slumbers
Ere the daylight can be seen.

Even before the birds are singing We are up and on our way Making ready for a breakfast Like the one of yesterday.

In the Chapel we're reminded
We must make our lives sublime,
But instead we leave behind us
On the walls poetic rhyme.

Then we think of cold December
Bringing round the Christmas tide
And we wonder if the College
In its walls our tricks will hide.

Then we sit and sadly ponder
Thinking o'er what we must do
To escape the coming zeros
That come not single nor a few.

Let us then be up and doing Cramming early, cramming late For exams, will soon be brewing We must fill each empty pate.

The Chatterbox.

PUBLISHED MONTHLY BY THE STUDENT BODY OF LITTLETON COLLEGE.

SUBSCRIPTION: One Year, \$1.00: Single Copy, 15 Cents, For sale at Room 132, Music Hall.

Entered as second-class matter, November 20, 1909, at the post-office at Littleton, N. C., under the act of March 3, 1879.

All former students, alumnæ and friends of the College are invited to contribute literary articles, personals and items to our columns. All contributions, accompanied by the writer's name, should be sent to the Editor-in-Chief.

CHATTERBOX STAFF.

LILLIAN READE PITTMAN, '10, Editor-in-Chief. MATTIE Moore, '10, Bus. Manager.

EMMA McCullen, '10.
Cora Womble, '11.

Assistant Business Managers.

Associate Editors:

NETTIE CULBRETH, '10. FRANCES ABERNETHY, '10} Literary. WILLIETTA EVANS, '11, Among Us. BOYD THORNE, '10, Y. W. C. A.

GERTIE BATEMAN, '10. Current Events. HAZEL JACKSON, '11. FANNIE RIVES VINSON, '10, Exchanges. REBIE JOHNSTON, '10, Alumnæ.

LILLIAN CHERRY, '11, Jokes.

Editorial.

New Year—Again we welcome the New Year with all its possibilities and opportunities. We begin with a page perfectly clean—marred by no failures. It is true that these are on the records of the past but we should not brood over past failures rather "let the dead past bury its dead." In the beginning each of us should make good resolutions with the determination to stick to them, come what may. Resolutions, regardless of value in themselves, become worthless unless there is some effort on the part of the maker to keep them. By making and keeping good resolutions, we can make 1910 the best year yet—shall we try it?

Cramming—Examinations are now upon us and the cry "Work" is heard on all sides, but why should there be so

much? The student who has done her work well throughout the term will find that her task is not so hard—only a glance over the pages to bring back more vividly the ideas once impressed. But what of the task of the one who has neglected her duty and idled away her time? Perhaps in one brief day the entire text-book, scarcely seen before, is gone over, then the examination is taken and laurels won. Examine the same two girls a month later, the one who has studied and digested the lessons as they came, still has them in memory but the one who gained the examination laurels has forgotten It is a psychological principle that unless ideas are associated with some other ideas in the mind, they are of no value, and this can not be done unless time and careful study are given. Cramming not only fails to store the mind with knowledge, but also dwarfs intellectual growth. It inculcates the slovenly habit of careless reading, which is the drawback to scholarly attainment.

P. TH. C. A.

BOYD THORNE, '10.

Sunday night, Dec. 5th, the service was led by Miss Kate Blakeny. Her subject was "Japan," and the service was very interesting. A reading, "The Story of a Japanese Girl" was given by Miss Mamie Massey, and there was a Japanese song sung by four little girls in Japanese costume.

The Y. W. C. A. meeting of Dec. 12th was led by Mr. Moyle, who gave us a fine sermon from the text, "Believe on the Lord Jesus Christ and thou shalt be saved." A solo was given by Miss Emma McCullen. The service was enjoyed by all, and we hope that we may sometimes have Mr. Moyle with us again.

Sunday night, Dec. 19th, a Christmas service was led by Miss Mattie Moore. Christmas music was rendered by the choir and there was a reading given by Miss Mamie Massey and one by Miss Hazel Jackson. The service was very interesting as well as helpful.

We have recently had a visit from Mr. Calahan, a missionary from Japan, who has been in the United States about a year. One evening he led our daily prayer service. At another time he gave us a very interesting account of Japan, its people and their customs, illustrating his talk with stereopticon views of that country. His visit was a source of great pleasure to us all, and our prayers and good will go with him as he returns to Japan.

Exchange Department.

FANNIE RIVES VINSON, '10.

The Winthrop College Magazine comes to us this time arrayed in a beautiful Christmas cover. Very often the beauty of a pretty cover is ruined by lack of the same attribute in its contents. Not so in this case, however, for the magazine is well worked up in every department and the Christmas spirit pervades the whole. We were especially attracted by the poem, "Things Ain't the Same"; the anthor must be a Southerner for she knows what lies next to the old darkey's heart and handles the negro dialect well. The story, "Many in One," also deserves notice for the reason that it is a well written love story.

The article on Imagination in the November number of The Palmetto and the Pine contains some very good thoughts. There are in it, however, one or two statements that might be called rash. For instance, there are very few people who think like the author that "a force little appreciated and generally scorned to-day is the power of Imagination." We can not say much for the story, "Bobby's Thanksgiving." It begins with the refusal of a young gallant by his fair lady because "he had never done anything to make one proud of him." The author, of course, does away with the difficulty and at length, by a wonderful athletic achievement, the rejected lover becomes a hero and she who demanded so much is satisfied. What grand ideas some people have of heroism!

The Athenian for November is very creditable. However it would be very much more enjoyable without the love story called "The Romance of a Senior." "My Opinion of the Sir Roger de Coverly Papers" is not so well expressed as it might be. Among the stories, "The Masquerade Ball" stands first both in plot and style.

Among Us.

WILLIETTA EVANS. '11.

Mr. W. J. Callahan, missionary to Japan, visited the College the first week in December. He gave several short talks on the work being done in the foreign field. These interested our girls, who are especially concerned about missions. His address on Thursday evening was illustrated by stereopticon views, which were taken from the everyday life of the Japanese.

Mr. R. H. Willis, the new pastor of the Methodist church in Littleton, has been spending several days at the college.

It was with mingled feelings of joy and sadness that we heard Mr. Broom give his farewell talk in the Auditorium on Monday.

We were indeed grieved to hear of the death of Mrs. Heptinstall for we feel that in her death the college has sustained a great loss.

Mr. Benjamin W. Norman, of Philadelphia, Pa., and Mr. Wooten, of Americus, Ga., visited Miss Norman Saturday, Dec. 18th.

Misses Betts and Green will leave soon for Rochester, New York, where they will attend the *Students Volunteer Conference*. We wish them a most pleasant trip.

The Faculty and Student's Recital given in the College Auditorium on Friday evening, December the tenth, was a decided success. The programme rendered was as follows:

Dennee	Tarantelle (Piano Forte)
Mary Mar	ade Hamilton.
Alfred Wooler	Springtime (Song)
Emma	McCullen.
Eugene Field, The Moo Cow Moo)
The Sugar Plum Tree	
The Duel	}Readings
	Thorne.

C. S. Morrison	
2	Iiss Brice.
	2d Impromptu (Piano Forte)
Δ.	liss Ward.
v	In the Children's Hospital (Reading) tie Culbreth.
	(With the Swallow) (Song) s Linthicum.
(Wit	nor, Romanzo and Finale (Piano Forte) ch second piano.) iss Sargent.
	Oh! For a Dream (Chorus) orus Class.)

Current Events

GERTIE E. BATEMAN, '10. HAZEL M. JACKSON, '11.

Commander Peary has examined the two Esquimaux who Dr. Cook says went with him to the pole. They have traced the journey on the map, and if their statements are true, Dr. Cook did not reach the pole. The people are trying to prove that the food which Dr. Cook says lasted him on his last "dash" could not have held out all that time. Both of these statements are quite serious.

There was published, on Nov. 20th, news that the U. S. Circuit Court of Missouri has decided against the Standard Oil Company in the suit brought against it by the U. S. government. The Standard Oil Company of New Jersey was declared very unequivocally to be a combination in restraint of trade, within the meaning of the Sherman Anti-trust Act, passed July 2d, 1890.

Mr. John D. Rockefeller has announced his intention to devote \$1,000,000 to the eradication and prevention of the hook-worm disease. The hook-worm is a parasite of African origin that has been discovered and thoroughly studied by Dr. Chas. Wardell Stiles, of the U.S. Public Health and Marine Service. The scene of its operation is mainly in the Southern States where as many as 2,000,000 people are said to be affected. Dr. Stiles declares the cause of the disease to be soil pollution. Some think that the dreadful disease may be cured and if so Mr. Rockefeller's money may succeed in ridding the South of a most terrible disease.

We are glad to learn that the representative of the Chinese government have just signed a contract calling for the installation of two ten-thousand-line telephone switchboards for Pekin. It is believed that the invention will take, and the Chinese will soon acquire the habit of ordering their rice and birds' nests over the telephone.

English astronomers have advanced the theory that Mars has turned yellow. That statement is evidence that England in chagrin over losing the north pole, is trying to steal a planet which we have always regarded as an American possession.—Literary Digest.

By revolution one does not always mean blood and steel, oftentimes they are merely changes in opinion and votes.

There may be, perhaps, next year, a revolution in England, as important as the Bill of Rights. The English people are seriously thinking about getting rid of their House of Lords. It is an obvious fact that England is growing more democratic each day.

Alumnae Notes.

"Should auld acquaintance be forgot.?"

REBIE JOHNSTON, '10.

Miss Emma Wilcox, '09, is spending the winter in Richmond, Va.

Miss Pauline Cherry is teaching in Lewiston, N. C.

Miss Stella McCall, now Mrs. McCallman is living in Gibson, N. C.

Miss Nena Newsom, now Mrs. J. C. Williams is living in Franklin, Va.

Miss Nena Thorne, 1900, is teaching Latin in Port Arthur, Texas.

Miss Katherine Beardsley is teaching in Manson, N. C.

Miss Bettie Whitaker is spending the winter at home in Trenton, N. C.

Miss Willie Sellars, '04, now Mrs. D. L. Culbertson, is living in Rockingham, N. C.

Miss Viola Boddie, '86, also an alumna of Peabody Normal, Nashville, Tenn., is a prominent member of the faculty of the State Normal, Greensboro, N. C.

Miss Mary Wyche, '89, is head nurse at Watts Hospital. Durham, N. C.

Miss Beatrice Jenkins, '03, now Mrs. Gamble sailed in '08 as a missionary to Korea.

Miss Ellen Gainey, '04, is a student at the Bible Training School, Nashville, Tenn.

Miss Sallie Lowder, '03, also a graduate of Scarritt Bible Training School, Kansas City, is doing work at Roberdel, N. C., as pastor's assistant.

Miss Nettie Johnston, now Mrs. Matt Ransom, is living in Littleton, N. C.

Miss Margaret Hall, now Mrs. J. F. Newsom, is living in Littleton, N. C.

Have You Heard the Latest?

"A little nonsense now and then Is relished by the best of men."

Jokes.

LILLIAN CHERRY, '11.

Welcome Christmas, with all its glee, Farewell Littleton! Don't you see! Jolly and gay we leave our den, No more trouble 'till 1910!

* * *

Freshman to Soph: "Why are the Sophomores so anxious for Christmas to come?"

Sophomore: "The reason's this, from chemistry test,

The poor sad Sophs will have a rest."

* * *

Senior Abernethy: "Say, Lil, let's give Miss H a silver nail file, with her name embroidered on it."

* * *

Miss D: "Miss S, explain the figure of speech known as Vision.

Miss S (quickly): "Vision occurs when one imagines he sees something, when he really doesn't; people generally have visious in dreams."

* * *

Senior A: "Say Bertha, have you ever heard the *parable* on Annabel Lee?"

* * *

Heard on the music hall.

Freshman S: "Say W, how do you like Harmony?"

Freshman W: "I like it pretty well, but I prefer oat meal."

Miss B.: "Ethel, what is a microscope?"

Ethel: Why-er it is something I'm going to take my clothes home in 'cause I don't want to be bothered with a trunk."

* * *

Miss H. in reading came to the word Satur, being rather timid, she hesitated, "Prof., how do you pronounce that?"

Prof. (quickly): "Oh, the devil-read on."

* * *

Mary: "Edna, please stop singing, you upsturb me."

* * *

Miss F.: "What is meant by our faculties?"

Dolly (Soph.): "Why it's our feet and hands."

* * *

Two bright Freshmen were discussing home-going. One remarked, "I'm not going to get a return ticket unless I cau get a great reproduction."

* * *

While making iodine in the laboratory Miss Jones said, "Girls, iodine gas is very poisonous."

Miss Edwards (earnestly): "Miss Jones, will it hurt us to exhale it?"

* * *

Florabel: "Oh! we have been having the most fun down in the laboratory, bleaching violets.

Marie (earnestly): "What color were they after you bleached them?"

* * *

Senior J.: "Say, Miss Jones, I thought Easter came on Monday last year."

Miss Jones: "Why J-What do you mean?"

Senior (quickly): "Oh, of course it didn't, I was thinking of Thanksgiving."

Miss B.: "Who was our first president?"

Pupil (quickly): "It was Christopher Columbus."

* * *

A bright Junior remarked, "I like Chaucer because he is of such a humorous temperature."

* * *

Teacher: "Did you ever read "Pilgrims Progress?"
Sophomore: "Oh! that's where all those people were on their way to Canterbury, isnt it?"

* * *

Freshman B. wants to know what day of the month Christmas comes on this year.

* * *

She: "I'm living on brown bread and water to improve my complexion."

He: "How long can you keep it up?"

She: "Oh, indefinitely, I guess."

He: "Then let's get married."—Ex

* * *

"Here's where I lose ground," said the tramp as he slipped into a bath tub.—Ex.

* * *

S. S.: "Some little boys are good, some bad. What kind go to Heaven?"

Boy: "Dead ones."—Ex.

* * *

A Wail From the English Department.

'Tis awfully discouraging
When "C's" forever come
And sometimes "D's," and oftener "E's,"
When English themes you're done.

And not at all regretfully,
She marks you down an "F"
When you have changed the subject, or
Have made up one yourself!

In that great big heart of Dargan's In a secret little nook, There's a red "A*" awaiting To be placed in the grade book.

You don't know but you may get it,
After toil and after pain,
But when at last you've got it,
Don't expect one soon again!
NETTIE CULBRETH.

COLLEGE DIRECTORY

SENIOR CLASS.

President—Boyd Thorne.
Vice-President—Rebie Johnston.
Secretary—Pearl Jones.
Treasurer—Kate Blakney.
Poet-Hist.—Fannie Rives Vinson.

JUNIOR CLASS.

President—Cora O. Womble. Vice-President—Willietta Evans. Secretary—Pollie Gibson. Treasurer—Hazel Jackson. Poet—Pauline Vick. Historian—Gretchen Gaylord.

SOPHOMORE CLASS.

President—Iola Massey. Vice-President—Selma Thornton. Secretary—Carrie Brame. Treasurer—Florence Jarratt. Poet-Historian—Mamie Massey.

FRESHMAN CLASS.

President—Erma Bradsher. Vice-President—Amparo Trevejo. Secretary—Ethel Gulledge. Treasurer—Maude Sturdivant. Poet—Aurelia Layden. Historian—Mattie Lawhorn.

Subfreshman Class.
President—Sadie Lytch.
Vice-President—Seatle Snell.

Secretary—Edna Rawls.
Treasurer—Irene Baker.
Poet-Historian—Lilly Amies.

Y. W. C. A.

President—Lillian Reade Pittman. Vice-President—Clyde Matthews. Secretary—Cora O. Womble. Treasurer—Mattie Moore.

ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION.

President—Frances Abernethy.
1st Vice-Pres.—Mary Ferguson.
2d Vice-President—Iola Bell.
3d Vice-President—Dolly Edwards.
Treasurer—Pauline Vick.

HYPERION LITERARY SOCIETY.

President—Kate Blakeney.
1st Vice-Pres.—Nettie Culbreth.
2d Vice-Pres.—Clyde Matthews.
Cor. Secretary—Lessie Sturdivant.
Rec. Secretary—Gretchen Gaylord.
Treasurer—Hazel Jackson.

EUNOMIAN LITERARY SOCIETY.

President—Mattie Moore.
1st Vice-Pres.—Frances Abernethy.
2d Vice-Pres.—Emma McCullen.
Cor. Secretary—Pearl Jones.
Rcc. Secretary—Pauline Vick.
Treasurer—Lillian Cherry.

PATRONIZE THOSE WHO PATRONIZE US

T. J. MILES, President

W. E. Bowers, Vice-President

PLANTERS BANK LITTLETON, N. C.

WE SOLICIT YOUR ACCOUNT, WHETHER SMALL OR LARGE, AND PROMISE YOU EVERY ACCOMMODATION THAT IS CONSISTENT WITH SOUND BANKING.

PAY 4 PER CENT INTEREST ON SAVINGS ACCOUNTS COMPOUNDED EVERY THREE MONTHS.

VERY SINCERELY,

M. J. GRANT, Cashier

E. A. PERRY

DENTIST

Office Hours: 9:00 to 1:00, 2:00 to 5:00

LITTLETON, N. C.

President: J. H. HARRISON

Vice-President: Eugene Johnston

Cashier: H. F. Bonney

BANK OF LITTLETON

LITTLETON, N. C.

WE PAY FOUR PER CENT INTEREST ON SAVINGS ACCOUNTS
WE SOLICIT YOUR BUSINESS

NELSON'S

THE LARGEST AND MOST COMPLETE STOCK

[IN THE SAME SIZE STORE]

IN NORTH CAROLINA

SHOES OF QUALITY



In all our experience in shoe selling we have never seen more attractive or more thoroughly good shoes than this season's "Queen Quality" styles. That they are all that good and fine shoes ought to be is evidenced by their tremendous vogue with discriminating women the country over. The choicest leather fashioned into shapes that for smartness, comfort and accurate fitting are the wonder of the shoemaking trade! And the variety is such that all shapes and sizes of feet can be fitted; just as all tastes can be pleased Priced at \$1.00, \$3.50 and \$3.00.

EVERY ARTICLE SOLD IS OF STANDARD QUALITY

NOTIONS

Novelties in the Lines of Hosiery, Ready Made Underwear, Corsets Neckwear, Belts, Handkerchiefs, Ribbons, Valenciennes Laces and Hamburgs.

DRY GOODS SPECIALTIES

Uniform Cloths and Woolens of the Latest Weaves, Special Values in White Lawns, Waistings, Etc.

We sell Ladies Horre Journals and the Home Journal Patterns

M. NELSON

Littleton Female College

This institution is splendidly located in Warren County, N. C., immediately on the Seaboard Air Line road about half way between Norfolk, Va., and Raleigh, N. C., in a section that has a wide reputation as a health resort.

We have a patronage of nearly 300 pupils—over 250 of whom are boarding pupils and a faculty of about 25 officers and teachers.

We have hot water heat, electric lights, bath and toilet rooms, hot and cold water on every floor, and, in fact all the modern improvements usually found in the best boarding schools.

We have three buildings all under one continuous roof containing more than 150 rooms, heated with hot water and lighted with electricity.

Two other buildings not connected, and three others in process of erection.

Any one who is acquainted with the institution and its work will tell the reader that Littleton College is a very superior school for the higher education of young women.

The home atmosphere of the school makes it a very desirable place for young women.

Our health record is a remarkable one. During the first 25 years of our existence we had but one death among our pupils.

For further information, or large illustrated free catalog, Address,

J. M. RHODES, President,

LITTLETON, N. C.

FOOTWEAR

WINTER AND SPRING STYLES 1909-1910

Selby Shoe Co. and Portsmouth Lines of Misses' and Women's Shoes

Our assortment in these two important lines embrace everything that is newest and best—and of exclusively good lasts.

OUR SHOE DEPARTMENT

has always stood for the highest quality and the widest possible assortment of designs, sizes, and styles.

We invite your inspection.

S. J. STALLINGS

Try Us Before Buying DRY GOODS, SHOES, CLOTHING

Margin of profit smallest. Prices of goods lowest

MOORE'S BARGAIN HOUSE

W.H. MAY

Dress Goods, Millinery, Notions and Shoes

EVERYTHING FOR LADIES AND CHILDREN

Advertisements

WHOSE LABEL IS ON YOUR BOTTLE?

For four years, the entire time we have been in the Drug Business, we have sold nothing but pure drugs. Now the Pure Food Law makes it a misdemeanor to sell anything else. We stand back of everything that is sold in our store. If there is any dissatisfaction, we want to know it, for we work all the time to please more. If it is pure drugs you wish and no substitution then it will pay you to visit our store.

It would be a pleasure to get better acquainted with you

THE LITTLETON PHARMACY

PERRY'S DRUG STORE

TWO DOORS FROM POST-OFFICE

Call to see us while waiting for your mail

CENTRAL ACADEMY

A HIGH-GRADE PREPARATORY SCHOOL

With Industrial and Agricultural Equipment

Boys and young men prepared for college in the most thorough manner. Course of study includes English, Mathematics, History, Latin, Greek, German, French, Science and Bible. A faculty of six competent teachers, good buildings, steam heat, splendid location and pure drinking water are some of the advantages. Expenses Exceedingly Moderate. For illustrated catalog, address

J. B. AIKEN, Principal LITTLETON, N. C.

Roses, Carnations, Violets

and other choice Cut Flowers always fresh on hand. Floral Designs at short notice. Shower Bouquets for Weddings.

Palms, Ferns and all kinds of House and Outdoor

Plants, Bulbs, Etc.

Mail and Telephone Orders Promptly Attended to

H. STEINMETZ, Florist, Raleigh, N. C.

GEM GROCERY CO.

PURE FOOD STORE

JOYNER BROTHERS, Proprietors

We keep everything good to eat. Good grade chocolate candy 20 cts. per pound. Nice line fruits always on hand. Phone us your wants. Phone 13.

We deliver all goods FREE.

Established 1897

Next New Post-office

J. F. NEWSOM & SON

FANCY GROCERS

OLDEST

LARGEST

BEST

Free Delivery to every point in town Phone 11

Agency for Nunnally's Candy

I carry everything in the JEWELRY LINE at rock bottom prices. All repair work done promptly and guaranteed.

J. H. JOHNSON Jeweler and Optician

Spring Park Hotel

Littleton, N. C.

Edwards & Broughton Printing Co.

(INCORPORATED)

Special Rates on College Publications, Stationery,
Invitations, Menus, Etc.

Correspondence Invited

Raleigh, North Carolina

SONGS FOR LITTLE SINGERS

Just off press. Adapted to the NEW URADED LESSONS. Miracle, Parable, Motion, and Two-Part Songs. Recitations, Prayers, Exercises.

30 cents each by mail, \$3 the dozen. Hall-Mack Co., Philadelphia, New York, Chicago

NEW SONGS OF THE GOSPEL COMBINED COMBINED 550 hymns, complete with music. All that is best by every author and publisher included, 22c each by mail, \$15 the 100. Hall-Mack Co., Phila., N.Y., Chicago.



